/A
<
CITY OF NOVATO
CALIFORNIA

PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes

Monday, August 28, 2023 — 7:00 pm

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Commission Present: Commissioners Dawson, Derby, Havel, Heath, Engdahl, and Tiernan
Commission Absent: Commissioner Crockett

Staff Present: Community Development Deputy Director Steve Marshall, Senior Planner Brett
Walker, Eileen Mahoney — Rincon Consultants

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

COMMISSION ACTION: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded by
Commissioner Dawson, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to approve
the final agenda.

AYES: Commissioners Dawson, Derby, Havel, Heath, Engdahl, and Tiernan
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Crockett
Motion carried.
C. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE
D. CONSENT ITEM - NONE
E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE
F. PUBLIC HEARING - NONE
G. GENERAL BUSINESS — NONE
G.1 COSTCO FUEL FACILITY CEQA SCOPING MEETING
PROJECT NO. P2020-025

STATE CLEARING HOUSE NUMBER 2021010190
APN 153-340-36; VINTAGE WAY

Page | 1 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Senior Planner Brett Walker presented the staff report.
Eileen Mahoney with Rincon Consultants presented an over of CEQA and the EIR process.

Senior Planner Walker stated that staff recommends the Planning Commission invite public
comment, he reiterated the meeting purpose is to receive public comment regarding the scope
and content of the EIR.

Deputy Director Marshall reminded the commission of the two comment letters received prior
to the meeting.

Commission Heath opened the floor to commissioner comments.
The public hearing was opened.

Susan Stompe stated that she lives in town, and she is happy the city is conducting this
environmental review. She stated this is a big issue that needs to be reviewed and provided
an example of the previous review and denial of a regional airport. She acknowledged the city
agreed to not build new gas stations. She stated this project does not support environmental
progress; more review of air quality and geotechnical issues needs to be done.

Silke Valentine stated she is a resident of Novato and recently came home from a trip abroad
and joined an environmental group. She said that the city needs to keep its environmental
promise to limit and end reliance on fossil fuels.

Kate Powers asked the city to focus on CEQA guidelines section 15064.4 which asks that the
city’s analysis should be on the project’s effect on climate change not just the quantity of
emissions. She said the lead agency should consider a timeframe for the analysis that is
appropriate to the project and must reasonably reflect scientific knowledge and state
regulations.

Ingrid Mejeda asked the city to consider a soil study (underground tanks) as part of their
environmental review. She stated wildfire is a concern. Consider what might happened if retail
locations were to move to housing.

Commissioner Havel asked when the application was submitted.

Senior Planner Walker estimated around April 2020.

Commissioner Havel stated this is the starting point focused on collecting data regarding what
the EIR should pay special attention to.

Senior Planner Walker confirmed September 11, 2023, as the cut-off date and time for public
comment regarding the scoping and analysis of the EIR.

Commissioner Havel asked how long it takes to prepare those comments.

Brett Walker stated from start to finish it is roughly a 6 to 9-month timeframe, the initial study
is already written, possibly another 3 months.

Page | 2 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Commissioner Havel asked if the EIR will focus on issues raised in the lawsuit, then circulated
again for review and comment by the public.

Senior Planner Walker said once the public draft is available for public review, there is a 45-
day public comment period, as well as Planning Commission hearings.

Commissioner Havel asked after the 45 days, is there a response time.

Senior Planner Walker confirmed yes, CEQA requires the city to provide a response to
comments.

Commissioner Havel asked if there is a hearing after comments have been reviewed.

Senior Planner Walker answered yes, there will be a Planning Commission meeting after the
45-day period before the final EIR is prepared.

Commissioner Havel clarified the timeline is still scheduled a year out.

Senior Planner Walker answered yes.

Commissioner Havel said the project is looking at 2024 for completion date. He wanted to
reiterate to the public to participate in public comment, stated there are many opportunities to
hear from residents.

Commissioner Derby asked why Costco didn’t pursue an EIR at the beginning of this project.

Deputy Director Marshall answered that ultimately the decision was made to prepare an initial
study, but it was noted there were risk factors.

Commissioner Derby asked Consultant Mahoney if this current scope of work is consistent
with other gas stations that Rincon has worked on.

Consultant Mahoney said yes this is similar to other projects they have worked on.
Commissioner Derby asked if this scope would cover everything in the lawsuit.

Consultant Mahoney said yes.

Commissioner Derby asked about geotechnical studies and does this scope cover them.
Consultant Mahoney said there was a report towards the end of the comment period that
incorporated geotechnical studies and the information would be under the section regarding

hazards and hazardous materials.

Commissioner Derby asked why the draft EIR returns to the Commission before the final EIR.

Page | 3 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Deputy Director Marshall said it comes back to allow the public to comment on the draft EIR,
and then the commission will be asked to make a judgement on whether the draft EIR is
adequate. Then staff will be directed to complete the final EIR.

Commissioner Engdahl asked what an EIR costs.

Senior Planner Walker answered about $250,000 — $260,000.

Commissioner Engdahl asked if all the issues brought up by the court will be addressed or will
that number rise.

Senior Planner Walker answered the project’s scope could expand beyond what was initially
intended or expected, but he can’t speak specifically since the project is ongoing.

Commissioner Engdahl asked is there a business plan or has the value of the tax revenue
been assessed.

Deputy Director Marshall said no, they won’t consider economics until or unless there is a
need for a statement of overriding considerations.

Commissioner Tiernan said driving down Rowland Boulevard, mitigation has already taken
place to relocate the parking that would be changed.

Senior Planner Walker said yes, the city had a separate project reviewing the Rowland
Boulevard improvements ahead of the judge’s direction to prepare an EIR. This allowed the
street improvements to move along separately from the Costco project.

Commissioner Tiernan was concerned about earthquake protection for the thousands of
gallons of gasoline stored underground. He asked to focus extra scrutiny on the section of the
analysis regarding vehicle miles traveled and how using Costco’s fuel center would save the
community miles driven. He asked to expand the alternatives section of the EIR.

Commissioner Heath asked what the city is doing regarding outreach to continue public
comments.

Senior Walker said the city maintains a project website and email notifications to send out
notices and updates.

Deputy Director Marshall described the city’s public noticing process.

H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS
Commissioner Derby asked if there are any housing element updates.

Deputy Director Marshall stated the city’s housing consultant is working on providing
supplemental data and staff is working on the site’s inventory.

Commissioner Derby asked if the city has received any builder's remedy applications.

Page | 4 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Deputy Director Marshall confirmed none had been received.

Commissioner Tiernan asked where in the process is the Fireman’s Fund project.

Deputy Director Marshall said staff will be bringing forward a rezoning and general plan
amendment. If the rezoning is approved the site will be designated for residential development
and new objective standards.

ADJOURNMENT

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 7:46 PM.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning
Commission meeting of March 25, 2024.

[Steve Marshall/
Steve Marshall, Deputy Director of Community Development

Page | 5 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

